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Chapel of Saint Christopher

in the Cemetery of Saint Michael Island

Historical outline of Saint Michael Cemetery Island and of the S. Christopher Chapel granted to the Archiconfraternity of S. Michael and Mercy in everlasting use by the Comune of Venice

Origins of the Archiconfraternity
In old times most graveyards were situated inside the city of Venice. Nearly all the churches had a little churchyard were people living in the area could be buried at their death. Later on it was introduced the habit to bury the dead inside the churches and in the monasteries’ cloisters.

This habit lasted until the beginning of the nineteenth century when Napoleon Bonaparte, by decree n°261 dated 7thDecember 1807, ordered that all cemeteries were to be located far from the inhabited area, mainly for public hygiene reasons. So Venice too had to conform to such rule and chose the island of Saint Christopher of the Peace, which had been left by the agostiniani monks in 1806 and then used as a military quarter. 

Since all the space in the island was required, both the church and the monastery, as well as the surrounding gardens and green yards, had to be demolished and a boundary wall was built all around the island. It was then decided to build a little “temple” or “oratory” where the church used to be, in order to respond to designate aim and use. The famous architect Giannantonio Selva was charged by the Venice Authority and he soon presented a beautiful project. According to this project this temple had to be round in shape, covered by a dome and with an open gallery on the other three sides where monuments could be placed. Unfortunately this could not be built because of the shortage of money and the architect could only provide the area with walls and build a chapel or oratory, octagonal in shape with two cenotaph-shaped entrances. These works were finished in two years and were blessed by the Bishop of Faenza - Mons. Stefano Bonsignore – at that time capitular administrator of Venice Patriarchate.
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The Chapel or Oratory of Saint Christopher was occupied for the first time by the family Rocca-Lucca who had a little chapel built inside, which still exists nowadays. 

Later on, being this oratory not big enough for a large number of brothers, the Archiconfraternity presented an extension project by eng. Angelo Davanzo and arch. Cesare Renier to the Venice Authority. In the new building the altar was devoted to the memory of S.Pio X, (formerly Cardinal Giuseppe Sarto), while in the centre of the chapel a mosaic reproduction of the famous Saint Christopher by Giovanni Bellini was created by the mosaicist Cesare Castaman.

On the 2ndJuly 1813 burial operations began.

In 1891 the Chapel of Saint Christopher was granted by the Comune of Venice (local authority) in use forever to the Archiconfraternity of Saint Christopher and Mercy, 
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It was blessed by the Cardinal Giuseppe Sarto, future pope and saint. About seven years after the beginning of the burial operations they realised that the Island of S.Christopher was not large enough tor the Venice population – at that time more than one hundred thousand. They decided to find another place for this use and the most suitable appeared to be the next island of Saint Michael, left by the camaldolite monks since 1816. This island was originally called “cavana de Muran”since it was used as a refuge for the boats of Murano. In 1212 the Camaldolites settled in the isle of S. Michael and stayed there until 1816, when, because of the napoleon suppressions, they had to leave the island. The French-napoleon government was followed by the Austrian one and the island monastery was turned into a political prison where also Silvio Pellico e Pietro Maroncelli were sent.

In 1825 the Comune of Venice acquired the island of S.Michael from the State. On the 19thOctober 1829 the Franciscan Grey-Friars settled there, took possession of the monastery and stayed there until 2008 when the last remained friars were retired by the upper district organ, mainly because of the shortage of new vocations and consequently of replacement of old friars by younger ones. In 1837 the channel that separated the two islands, S.Michael’s and S.Christopher’s, was filled up. From then on the whole cemetery was called Saint Michael.

In 1813, after the first burial operations, two well-deserving citizens, Giacomo Massaggia and Bernardo Pasini, joined together with other pious persons and set up a confraternity. They were delighted to have among the brothers the patriarch of Venice, Cardinal Monico, personalities from the local authority, magistrates, venetian nobles and the then podestà of Venice Giuseppe Baldù.

On the 21st May 1824 the two founders were officially acknowledged as Pia Confraternita, right sanction issued by N.H.Antonio Co.Giovanelli, head of the Committee for Cemetery works. This date is considered the official beginning of this charity institution.

On 20th January 1838 this confraternity received the sovereign approval of His Majesty Ferdinando I of Austria who, with resolution of 21st1839, wanted to be enrolled as a member.

On 20th June the privileged gazzetta of Venice reported the following: “Lombard-Venetian Kingdom- H.M. the Emperor and O. L. the King with worshipful sovereign resolution of 21st May 1839 graciously condescended that his august name would be added to the list of the members of the Pia Confraternita, instituted for the souls of the dead in the cemetery of this regal city.”

In another rescript dated 7thNovember 1840 H.M. Ferdinando I of Austria awarded the title “Archiconfraternity” With this title this confraternity was elevated, and still it is, to the high degree of the Great Schools of Venice.

The Archiconfraternity of S.Christopfer and Mercy is nowadays live and flourishing in Venice and, with some variations added to its original statute, adapting itself to the other Italian Confraternities of Mercy, does its best in the town with social-charity works for the poor, the old, the underage and for the extra community people in need of medical cures.

[image: image4.jpg]



[image: image5.jpg]2 lopg —————
= 'mngﬁ
s.?dtzg





Arciconfraternita di S. Cristoforo e della Misericordia

S. Polo, 135 – 30125 VENEZIA

tel. e fax 041.5224745

e-mail: info@misericordiavenezia.org
Arciconfraternita di S. Cristoforo e della Misericordia di Venezia

S. Polo, 135 – 30125 VENEZIA

(tel. e fax 041.5224745 – e-mail: info@misericordiavenezia.org)
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